
 
 

 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Adult 
Social Care 
 

Tuesday, 30 January 2024 at 9.00 am 

Room 1 - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 
If you wish to view proceedings, please click on this Live Stream Link. 

However, that will not allow you to participate in the meeting. 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 

overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on                 unless called in by that 

date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 

 

These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
Martin Reeves 
Chief Executive 

January 2024 
 

Committee Officer: Committee Services 
E-Mail: committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

Note:  Date of next meeting: 27 February 2024 
 

 
 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

https://oxon.cc/DDCMASCddmmyyyy


Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  
 

See guidance below. 
 

2. Questions from County Councillors  

 
Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working 

days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet 
Member’s delegated powers. 

 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is 
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the meeting) 

and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with questions at 
Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item will receive a 

written response. 
 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be 

the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor 
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the subject of further 

debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before 
the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting, 
together with any written response which is available at that time. 

 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

 
Members of the public who wish to speak at this meeting can attend the meeting in 
person or ‘virtually’ through an online connection. 

 
Requests to speak must be submitted by no later than 9am four working days before the 

meeting.  Requests to speak should be sent to 
committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk . 
 

If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your presentation to 
ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken into account. A 

written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9 am 2 working days before 
the meeting. Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet.  
 

4. Respite Services (Provision of breaks to Carers) (Pages 1 - 6) 

 

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 
Forward Plan Ref: 2024/003. 

Contact: Bhavna Taank, Lead Commissioner Live Well 
(bhavna.taank@oxfordshire.gov.uk).  
 

Report by: Corporate Director of Adult Social Care (CMDASC4) 
 
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to 

 

mailto:committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:bhavna.taank@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Page 3  
 

 

a) Agree the 8-month extension to contract with a value of up to £849,333, to 
support the robust redesign and procurement of the future provision for the 

learning disability respite service contract. 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



Page 4  
 

 

Councillors declaring interests  
General duty  

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 

on the agenda headed ‘Declarations of Interest’ or as soon as it becomes apparent to 

you.  

 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?  

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your employment; sponsorship (i.e. payment for 

expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 

election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the 

Council’s area; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be 

recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the 

Council’s website.  

 

Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member 

her or himself but also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with 

as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 

Declaring an interest  

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a 

meeting, you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature 

as well as the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after 

having declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the 

item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception  

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code 

of Conduct says that a member ‘must serve only the public interest and must never 

improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and 

that ‘you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 

questioned’.  

 

Members Code – Other registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 

wellbeing of one of your other registerable interests then you must declare an  interest. 

You must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and you must withdraw from 

the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and happiness; 

anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively or 

negatively, is likely to affect their wellbeing. 

Other registrable interests include:  

a) Any unpaid directorships 

b) Any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority. 



Page 5  
 

 

c) Any body (i) exercising functions of a public nature (ii) directed to charitable 

purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a 

member or in a position of general control or management. 

 

Members Code – Non-registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or 

wellbeing (and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests), or the financial 

interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must declare the interest.  

 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing, 

a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or 

wellbeing of a body included under other registrable interests, then you must declare the 

interest.  

 

In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your 

interest the following test should be applied:  

Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being:  

a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;  

b) a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest. 

 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at 

the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter 

and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Divisions Affected – N/A 

 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE 

30 JANUARY 2024 
 

CONTRACT EXTENSION FOR LEARNING DISABILITY RESPITE 
SERVICE 

 

Report by Corporate Director for Adult Social Care 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to 

 
1. Agree the 8-month extension to contract with a value of up to £849,333, to 

support the robust redesign and procurement of the future provision for the 

learning disability respite service contract. 

 Executive Summary 
 

2. Respite is planned, time-limited, or emergency care provided to support 
customers and caregivers with having a break from each other or a break from 

their caring role. Respite additionally provides the opportunity for customers to 
socialise with their peers in their personal time.  

 

3. Brandon Trust, as the Council’s learning disability respite provider, is a leading 
strategic partner in the provision of local services for Adult Social Care. The 

Council is committed to ensuring strong partnership working and enhanced 
engagement in the future delivery of this service. 

 

4. The Council fully funds this service which was commissioned as a 5 + 5 year 
building based contract that commenced on 18th October 2018. The Council has 

the unilateral right to extend the contract on 6 months’ written notice. 
 
5. This report sets out the recommended approach available to the Council, to 

apply an 8-month contract extension to the existing contract, effective from 
August 1st, 2024.  

 
6. This extension will fall within the existing pro-rata Adult Social Care budget of 

£849,333, which is inclusive of the pre-determined emergency cover budget for 

the 8-month period. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



7.  This paper additionally clarifies the current contract position and emphasises 
the necessity of extending to allow a thorough service redesign, whilst ensuring 
customer, political, and organisational needs are met for the future. 

 Background 

 

8. Following the Strategic Provision Board's April 2023 decision, the Council 
unilaterally extended the current contract for 9 months up to 31st July 2024.  

 

9. The existing extension was prompted by the planned service redesign. Current 
contractual terms stated the requirement of 6 months’ notice, for any further 

extensions. The current cut-off date for requesting a further extension is January 
31st, 2024.  

 

10. Through thorough research, it has become clear that the current contract's  
structure, dividing rent, emergency cover, hourly rates, and core delivery, is 

overly complex.  
 
11. Whilst negotiations on final contractual costs for the extension period remain 

ongoing, the Council requires further time to reach a mutual agreement. The 
negotiations will ensure the costs will remain the specified financial envelope 

above for the 8 months period.  
 
12. While the Council holds the right to maintain the current financial contract terms  

during the extension period, doing so could compromise Brandon Trust (a key 
strategic) and their financial viability for this contract.  

 
13. This paper proposes applying an 8-month extension being from August 1st, 

2024 - March 31st, 2025, to facilitate the finalisation of a new recommissioned 

service to be start on April 1st, 2025. This will allow time for mixed approach 
model through effective benchmarking and engagement along with a robust 

costing analysis. 

 Corporate Policies and Priorities 

 

14. Within the six principles of the Care Act 2014, it defines prevention as one of 
the guiding principles within the Act. 

 
15.     Section 2 of the Care Act recognises the carer’s right to have their own needs 

assessed and supported. This includes access to respite care to maintain their 

own physical and mental well-being. 
 

16.     Section 18 of the Care Act states that local authorities must consider respite 
care when conducting a needs assessment for either the cared-for person or 
their carer. This means it is not automatically guaranteed, but they must 

actively evaluate its potential benefits and suitability.  
 

17. Section 10 of the Care Act, requires local authorities to conduct an assessment, 
known as a “carer’s assessment”, where it identifies that a carer may have 
needs or requires support at that time or in the future. 

Page 2



18.      Section 20 of the Care Act places a duty and power on local authorities to meet 
a carers’ needs for support where they qualify through an assessment for 
specific support. 

 
19.     By providing respite services, it supports the principles within the Care Act by 

supporting carers to have a break from their caring role, to ensure that they are 
able to care for the people they support, for longer. 

 

20. By practising the Council’s objective of ‘You said, we did,’ will ensure that the 
people that use the service, their parents, and carers, have their voices heard 

through supporting the co-produced design of the new service. 
 

21. Additionally, through the Council engaging with the local community, the Counci l 

ensures that customers are being treated as a priority, by those who support 
them. 

 
22. By designing the new service, creates the potential to provide significantly more 

self-directed support opportunities, than currently delivered. This approach 

further ensures the Council continues to reduce the inequalities in accessing 
support and services, in Oxfordshire.  

 
23. Through taking the engagement and redesign work out to the community will  

enable the Council to hear the seldom heard voices of unpaid and/or older 

carers. 
 
24. By designing a person led service, will provide the opportunity to create further 

employment opportunities, in line with the Council’s priority on building on 
existing community capacity.  

 Financial Implications 

 

25. This extension will fall within the existing pro-rata Adult Social Care budget of 
£849,333, inclusive of the pre-determined £66,667 for emergency costs. 

 

26. Whilst Commissioners continue the positive ongoing negotiations with the 
provider, to ensure an amicable agreement remains within the allocated 

financial envelope, the Council can further optimise costs, through ultimately 
reserving the right to continue the contract under the current financial terms. 

 

 Ratified by Stephen Rowles, Interim Finance Business Partner, 
Stephen.rowles@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 Legal Implications 

 
27. The statutory power and duties of the Council to provide the services under the 

extended contract are set out at paragraph 4.1 above. 
 

28. Under the terms and conditions of the existing contract the Council holds the 
unilateral right to extend the contract period by up to 5 years, in aggregate. The 
proposed extension and previous extension fall within this maximum 5-year 

Page 3

mailto:Stephen.rowles@oxfordshire.gov.uk


period and do not therefore constitute a modification to the original contract 
terms and conditions. The proposed extension is therefore compliant with the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 (as amended). 

 
 Ratified by Jonathan Pool, Solicitor (Contracts), 

Jonathan.pool@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 Staff Implications 

 

29. Approval of the recommendation will provide Brandon Trust staff with a longer 
period of employment security, leading to the new contract start date. 

 
30.  The successful bidder/s for the new service will then progress their responsibility 

for the TUPE management arrangements, through the mobilisation stage of the 

implementation period. 
 

31. Further detailed exploration into the TUPE arrangements will be jointly 
Progressed between Procurement, Commissioners and HR, prior to publishing 
the tender documentation. 

 Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 

32. No evidence has been identified to suggest, that by the Council approving this 
recommendation, will lead to a negative impact on the community, 
environment, or its strategic partners within Oxfordshire. 

 
33. The benefits to the Council in approving the recommendation within this 

paper, are highlighted within 4.1 of this paper. It will also provide a continuity 
of care for individuals accessing the service eliminating any potential service 
gaps due to the time it may take to design a new service. 

 Sustainability Implications 

 

34. Drawing upon the valuable feedback received through the stakeholder 
engagement and in addition from future insights from a thorough 
benchmarking exercise, this will result in a detailed specification being 

developed which will provide a better tailored service which will provide a 
significantly wider reach and will provide greater sustainability for the future of 

this provision.  

  Risk Management 

  
35.     By approving the recommendation within this paper, promotes more benefits 

than drawbacks. 

 
36.     Provides the ability to complete a robust redesign of a new Respite model with 

uncompromised access due to reduced financial instability. 
 

Page 4

mailto:Jonathan.pool@oxfordshire.gov.uk


37.     A reduction in the drawbacks and better mitigation of long-term risk through 
following a more thoughtful process in design.  

 

38.     This will maintain key relations with a key and large strategic local partner 
delivering social care services in Oxford. 

 
 

 Consultations 

 
39. Commissioners have gathered feedback on the Respite service redesign, 

through a series of engagement events.  
 
40. Participants included individuals who access Oxfordshire Family Support 

Network and My Life My Choice, current staff of the Respite service, and active 
service users.  

 
41.       Engagement events informed existing users about future commissioning plans 

and offered them the opportunity to share their experiences: what worked well, 

what could be improved and their suggestions for a redesigned service.  
 

 
42.      The resulting feedback covered both positive aspects of the current service, 

areas requiring improvement, and innovative elements they hope to see in 

future provision. 
  

 
 
Karen Fuller 

Corporate Director for Adult Social Care 
 

Annex: Nil 
 
Background papers: Nil 

 
[Other Documents:] Nil  

 
Contact Officer: Bhavna Taank 
 Lead Commissioner – Live Well 

 LiveWellCommissioning@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 
 
 
January 2024        

Page 5

mailto:LiveWellCommissioning@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Respite Services (Provision of breaks to Carers)

